
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
MPC MEETING 

 
WEDNESDAY NOVEMBER 21, 2018 

 
 12:30 P.M. 
 

TOWN HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 



TOWN OF REDCLIFF 
MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

WEDNESDAY NOVEMBER 21, 2018 – 12:30 PM 

AGENDA 
Pg.	 Agenda Item 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

 
3. PREVIOUS MINUTES 

4 A) Minutes of October 17, 2018 meeting  

 
4. REPORTS TO MPC 

8 A) Dates Development Permits advertised in Commentator 

a. November 6, 2018 (Ad is attached) 

 B) Development Permit Applications Approved/Denied by 
Development Officer since the last MPC meeting: 

a. Development Permit Application 18-DP-059 
Carolyn Whitfield  
Lot 27, Block 5, Plan 0012006 (938 Kipling Cr. SE) 
Approved: Home Occupation -  

b. Development Permit Application 18-DP-060 
Dan Dueck  
Lot 10, Block 6, Plan 9711977 (#1 – 1500 South Highway Dr. SE)
Approved: Retail Store – Computer Repair  

c. Development Permit Application 18-DP-061 
MacLean Weidermann LLP  
Lot 10 - 13, Block 3, Plan 5094AV (37 Dutton Street SE) 
Approved: Permit to Stay  

d. Development Permit Application 18-DP-062 
Bill Crozier  
Lot 18 - 20, Block 24, Plan 1117V (301 5 Street SE) 
Approved: Hot Tub  

e. Development Permit Application 18-DP-063 
Terry Goldade  
Lot 113, Block 1, Plan 0213235 (47 Riverview Drive SE) 
Approved: Accessory Building – Garden Shed  

 

1



TOWN OF REDCLIFF 
MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

WEDNESDAY NOVEMBER 21, 2018 – 12:30 PM 

AGENDA 
Pg.	 Agenda Item 

f. Development Permit Application 18-DP-064 
White Dragon Karate  
Lot 17-18, Block 73, Plan 775AD (#4 – 116 Broadway Avenue E)
Approved: Change of Use – Fitness Center 

	 C) Appeals of Development Decisions received since the last MPC 
meeting 

a. No Appeals of Development decisions have been received. 

	 D) SDAB Decisions rendered since the last MPC meeting 

a. Development Permit Application 18-DP-047 
Rick Wagenaar 
Lot 7-9, Block 92, Plan 1117V (20 5 Street NW) 
Approved with Conditions: Accessory Building - Pole Barn              

b. Development Permit Application 18-DP-049 
West Built Homes Ltd. 
Lot 11, Block 22, Plan 3042AV (801 7 Street SE) 
Denied: Semi-Detached Dwelling 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

E) Council Decisions and Direction related to the Land Use Bylaw 
since the last MPC meeting 

a. No Decisions or Directions related to the Land Use Bylaw have 
been received 

F) Items Received for Information 

a. No items received for information have been received. 

2



TOWN OF REDCLIFF 
MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

WEDNESDAY NOVEMBER 21, 2018 – 12:30 PM 

AGENDA 
Pg.	 Agenda Item 

 

	
	
9 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

5. SUBDIVISION APPLICATION(S) FOR MPC CONSIDERATION 

A) 2018 SUB 03 – Subdivision Application   
Ken Appleton and Paul Vince 
Lots 1 & 2, Block 17, Plan 1117V (437 & 439 2 Street SE) 
Subdivision Application to create two separate certificates of title 

a. Application 

b. Background report 

c. Procedure 

i. Presentation of Development Officer 

ii. Presentation of Applicant 

iii. Presentation of Interested Parties 

iv. MPC Discussion (Note, MPC may go in camera for 
discussion) 

v. Decision of MPC 

	
6. ITEMS FOR MPC COMMENT 

	
	
29 
	

A) Development Permit Application 18-DP-065 
New Leaf Cannabis  
Lot 16, Block 75, Plan 775AD (318 Broadway Avenue E) 
Cannabis Retail Store  

a. Application 

b. Background report 

c. Procedure 

i. Presentation of Development Officer 

ii. Presentation of Applicant 

iii. Presentation of Interested Parties 

iv. MPC Discussion (Note, MPC may go in camera for 
discussion) 

v. Decision of MPC 

	
7. ADJOURNMENT 

 

3



MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY OCTOBER 17, 2018 – 12:30 PM 

TOWN OF REDCLIFF  

 
PRESENT: Members:     L. Leipert , S. Gale, 

 N. Stebanuk, J. Steinke,  
    
   Development Officer:    B. Stehr 
   Planning Specialist    J. Zukowski 
   Director of Planning & Engineering  J. Johansen, 

Manager of Legislative & Land Services 
Recording Secretary    S. Simon 

 
       
 ABSENT: Members:     B. Duncan, B. Vine, J. Beach 

Technical Assistant/Recording Secretary R. Arabsky 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

L. Leipert, Chairperson called the meeting to order at 12:30 p.m. 

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

S. Gale moved that the agenda be adopted as presented.  – Carried. 

3. PREVIOUS MINUTES 

J. Steinke moved the minutes of the MPC meeting September 19, 2018 be adopted as presented. 
– Carried. 

4. REPORTS TO MPC 

S. Gale moved to receive for information the following Reports to MPC for the MPC meeting of 
October 17, 2018:  

A) Dates Development Permits advertised in Commentator. 

a) September 25, 2018 & October 9, 2018  

B) Development Permit Applications approved/denied by Development Officer. 

a) Development Permit Application 18-DP-040 
Trico Holdings Ltd. 
Lot 12, Block 10, Plan 7711421 (1601 Highway Ave.) 
Approved: Addition 
 

b) Development Permit Application 18-DP-041 
Sara Wiens 
Lot 9, Block 25, Plan 1117V (321 4 Street SE) 
Approved: Boulevard Development – Driveway 

 
  

4



Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – October 17, 2018         Page   2 of 4 

c) Development Permit Application 18-DP-047 
Rick Wagenaar 
Lot 7-9, Block 92, Plan 1117V (20 5 Street NW) 
Denied: Accessory Building - Pole Barn 
 

d) Development Permit Application 18-DP-048 
U-Haul (Canada) Ltd. 
Lot A, Block 6, Plan 7410658 (1901 Highway Ave. SE) 
Approved: Interior Renovations 

 
e) Development Permit Application 18-DP-049 

West Built Homes Ltd. 
Lot 11, Block 22, Plan 3042AV (801 7 Street SE) 
Denied: Semi-Detached Dwelling 
 

f) Development Permit Application 18-DP-050 
Mike Stadnyk 
Lot 34-35, Block 2, Plan 3042AV (528 5 Street SE) 
Approved: Home Occupation – Drain Cleaning 

 
g) Development Permit Application 18-DP-051 

Chris MacPherson 
Lot 3-4, Block 9, Plan 3042AV (633 6 Street SE) 
Approved: Accessory Building – Detached Garage 

 
h) Development Permit Application 18-DP-052 

Barry Charlton 
Lot 44, Block 121, Plan 9810300 (213 3 Street NW) 
Approved: Boulevard Development 

 
i) Development Permit Application 18-DP-053 

Rock Losier 
Lot 20, Block 1, Plan 8211144 (6 Riverview Place SE) 
Approved: Accessory Building – Garden Shed 

 
j) Development Permit Application 18-DP-055 

Dunmore Liquor Ltd. 
Lot 3-6, Block 84, Plan 755AD (301 Broadway Ave. E) 
Approved: Change of Use – Liquor Store 

 
k) Development Permit Application 18-DP-056 

Will Corporation  
Lot 12, Block 1, Plan 0411924 (2450 South Highway Drive SE) 
Approved: Change of Use – Automotive Sales & Rentals 

 
l) Development Permit Application 18-DP-057 

Tactical Moving & Delivery  
Lot 40, Block 9, Plan 9510287 (941 6 Street SE) 
Approved: Home Occupation – Moving & Delivery 

 

  

5



Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – October 17, 2018         Page   3 of 4 

 
m) Development Permit Application 18-DP-058 

Randall Fairhurst  
Lot 9, Block 2, Plan 123LK (9 Elm Court SE) 
Approved: Accessory Building – Garden Shed 
 

C) Appeals of Development Decisions received since the last MPC Meeting. 

a) Development Permit Application 18-DP-047 (Rick Wagenaar) 
Lot 7-9, Block 92, Plan 1117V (20 5 Street NW)  
Accessory Building – Pole Barn  

 
b) Development Permit Application 18-DP–049 ( West Built Homes Ltd) 

Lot 11, Block 22, Plan 3042AV (801 7 Street SE)  
Semi-Detached Dwelling  
 

D) SDAB Decisions rendered since the last MPC Meeting. 

J. Johansen advised the SDAB met October 16, 2018 to hear appeals with regard to 
Development Permit Application 18-DP-047, and Development Permit Application 18-DP-
049.   

E) Council Decisions and Direction related to the Land Use Bylaw since the last MPC. 

No report on Council Decision and direction related to the Land Use Bylaw has been 
received since the last MPC meeting.  

F) Items Received for Information 

No items have been received for information.  

- Carried 

5. SUBDIVISION APPLICATION(S) FOR MPC CONSIDERATION 

A) 2018 SUB 02 – Subdivision Application   
Brian Munro, Global Raymac Surveys Inc. (Agent) 
Lots 7-9, Block 8, Plan 1117V (625 1 Street SE) 
Subdivision Application to create two R1-Single Family Residential Lots, for single family 
home development 

S. Gale moved that MPC acting as the Subdivision Approving Authority approve 
Subdivision Application 2018 SUB 02 [Lots 7-9, Block 8, Plan 1117V (625 1 Street SE)] to 
create two R1-Single Family Residential Lots, for single family home development with the 
following conditions: 

1. All taxes paid, 
2. The removal of existing building(s) from the lands. 
3. Removal or proper abandonment of existing service connections that are no longer required 

in accordance with the standards and procedures of each of the service providers with any 
applicable costs to be the responsibility of the owner. 

6



Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – October 17, 2018         Page   4 of 4 

4. The applicant is responsible to arrange and pay for the individually servicing of each lot in 
accordance with the standards and procedures of each of the service providers of the 
following services: 
 Potable water, 
 Sanitary sewer, 
 Electrical Power, 
 Gas 

Further that confirmation from Utility Providers that services have been installed is provided. 
5. The Property Owner to provide a letter acknowledging that the lots created do not meet the 

minimums outlined in the Land Use Bylaw and that no relaxation of setbacks will be 
considered at the time of development permit applications. 

Carried. 

6. ITEMS FOR MPC COMMENT 

Chairman L. Leipert confirmed there were no items presented for MPC comment.  

7. ADJOURNMENT 

N. Stebanuk moved adjournment of the meeting at 12:45 p.m. – Carried. 

 

 

      
  Chairman     

 
      
Recording Secretary   

  

7



8



TOWN OF REDCLIFF 
P.O. Box 40 - 1 – 3rd Street NE 

Redcliff, Alberta  T0J 2P0 
Phone 403-548-3618 

Fax 403-548-6623 
Email  redcliff@redcliff.ca 

www.redcliff.ca 

 

 

Subdivision Authority Report 

File: 2018 SUB 03 

Applicant / Agent of Applicant: Ken Appleton & Paul Vince 

Legal Surveyor: Dean D. Fischer A.L.S., Benchmark Geomatics Inc. 

Current Legal Description: Lots 1 & 2, Block 17, Plan 1117V 

Municipal Address: 437 & 439 2 St. SE, Redcliff AB 

Land Owner: Ken Appleton & Paul Vince 

Type of Subdivision: R1- Single Family Residential District 

Purpose of Subdivision: To subdivide the parcel to create two separate certificates of title 

Subdivision by: (X) Plan   (  ) Instrument 

Current Zoning: R1- Single Family Residential District 

Number of Lots Created: 2 

Reserve Status: (  ) Required  (X) Not Required 

Items attached to this report: 

a. Proposed Subdivision Background Report 

i. Subdivision Application Form 

ii. Tentative Plan of Lots 1 & 2, Block 17, Plan 1117V  

iii. Certificate of Title 

iv. Map of Abandoned Wells 

b. Circulation list 

i. Town of Redcliff Administration 

ii. Affected Agencies 

iii. Adjacent Property Owners 

c. Proposed Subdivision Evaluation Checklist  

 
   

9



TOWN OF REDCLIFF 
P.O. Box 40 - 1 – 3rd Street NE 

Redcliff, Alberta  T0J 2P0 
Phone 403-548-3618 

Fax 403-548-6623 
Email  redcliff@redcliff.ca 

www.redcliff.ca 

 

 

Administrative Summary 

Subdivision Authority Report: (November 7, 2018) 

This application was circulated to affected agencies, adjacent property owners, and Town of 
Redcliff Administration to comment. Comments were to be received by October 30, 2018. 

The following is a summary of the comments received by October 30, 2018 from affected 
Agencies: 

City of Medicine Hat Gas Department – Distribution – Comments Below: 

 There is a 50mm medium-pressure poly distribution gas main located within the lane 
at the rear of the properties 

 As per the Gas Utility bylaw each lot is to be individually serviced (i.e.one meter and 
service per lot). This application would create two separate lots and the existing 
service to #437 would contravene the bylaw and, as such, #437 would require a new 
service.  

 As there is no main along either unoccupied boundary of #437, a new main 
would be required to service #437 (see map). With Town of Redcliff approval, 
this main extension could be placed in the existing road right-of-way, 
otherwise a UROW would be required through the existing property. This 
UROW would be surveyed and registered at the developer’s expense. 

 The developer is responsible for all associated costs with the installation of 
the gas main extension, service line, meter set, and all secondary plumbing. 

 The service for #439 would remain as is, however the portion running to #437 
would need to be abandoned, at the developer’s expense. 

 To initiate servicing, the developer must apply using the City’s Gas Service 
Application form.  Detailed load information will be required to adequately 
size the individual service line and meter set. 

City of Medicine Hat Planning & Development Services – no objections 

City of Medicine Hat Electric Department – Comments Below: 
 UDS – Electric Distribution requires each property to be individually serviced 

without trespassing across other lots. This application would create two separate 
lots and the existing service to #437 would contravene this requirement therefore 
#437 would require a new service 

  

10



TOWN OF REDCLIFF 
P.O. Box 40 - 1 – 3rd Street NE 

Redcliff, Alberta  T0J 2P0 
Phone 403-548-3618 

Fax 403-548-6623 
Email  redcliff@redcliff.ca 

www.redcliff.ca 

 

 

City of Medicine Hat Natural Gas & Petroleum Resources – Comments Below: 

 A map was provided to display the gas facilities within proximity to the proposed 
subdivision 

 Surface improvements are not permitted within the City of Medicine Hat pipeline 
UROW and within 100m of any City of Medicine Hat wellhead, unless the 
subdivision/landowner applies to and receives approval from the Alberta Energy 
Regulator (AER) and the City for a setback reduction 

 Any ground disturbances or surface improvements within 30m of any high-
pressure gas production mains or within 100m of any gas wells will require a 
crossing/proximity agreement. Contact landsconsents@medicinehat.ca for 
required documentation 

 See Natural Gas & Petroleum Resources Surface Land Comments for further 
detail/clarification. 
 No surface improvements may be made within 100m of any City 

wellhead, unless the subdivision/landowner applies to, and receives 
approval from the Alberta Energy Regulator (AER) and the City for a 
setback reduction. 

 No surface improvements may be within any City wellsite, access road, or 
pipeline right-of-way/easement leased area. 

 Per Alberta Occupational Health & Safety Code 2009: 
o Notification must be given to the City prior to any ground 

disturbance within 100m of a City wellhead, or within 30m of a City 
high pressure pipeline/UROW boundary. 

o Consent must be obtained from the City prior to any traffic/heavy 
equipment driving over, parking on, or otherwise crossing City 
wellsite, access road, or pipeline right-of-way/UROW leased area 

 Per Alberta Subdivision and Development Regulation: 
o Developers and property owners applying for a subdivision or 

development permit must identify the location of abandoned wells 
during planning and appropriately address them in the proposed 
development. Please refer to Alberta Energy Regulator (AER) 
Directive 079 – Surface Development in Proximity to Abandoned 
Wells for setback requirements and approval procedures for 
subdivision/development in proximity to abandoned wells. 

Cypress County Planning Department – no objections or further comments 

All other agencies circulated did not return comments. 

11



TOWN OF REDCLIFF 
P.O. Box 40 - 1 – 3rd Street NE 

Redcliff, Alberta  T0J 2P0 
Phone 403-548-3618 

Fax 403-548-6623 
Email  redcliff@redcliff.ca 

www.redcliff.ca 

 

 

The following is a summary of the comments received by October 30, 2018 from Town of 
Redcliff Administration: 

Development Officer – Comments Below relating to the Land Use Bylaw (LUB) and other 
applicable bylaws: 

 The front yard setback of 4.16 m is less than the 6.0 m as required by the LUB; 

 The side yard setback on the North side of 1.08 m is less than the 1.5 m as required 
by the LUB; 

 The side yard setback on the South side of 2.37 m is less than the 3.0 m as required 
by the LUB; 

 Proposed lot size for lot 42 of 226.47 sq. m is less than the 250 sq. m as required for 
a semi-detached dwelling in the R-1 Single Family Residential District; 

 Town of Redcliff assessor lists the semi-detached dwelling as 80.08 sq. m (862 sq. 
ft.) per side. The site coverage would be 35% and would comply with the LUB; 

 The LUB requires 2 parking stalls per residence. The parking stalls shall not be 
permitted in the front yard if the building is less than 6.0 m; 

 A parking stall is defined in the LUB as 2.7 m by 7.2 m; 

 There appears to be adequate room for 2 parking stalls in the front yard. A drive by 
inspection, and aerial views show that there is currently no parking in the front yard 
of the building; 

 The LUB requires a minimum of 6.0 sq. m of amenity space for all multi-family 
developments. This amenity space shall be exclusive of front and side yard 
setbacks; 

 Should the addressing change so that the front of the building is considered on 5 
avenue, the buildings would not comply with the minimum rear yard setback of 6.0 
m. 

Director of Planning & Engineering – Comments Below: 

 The layout and servicing of this building has not been done in a manner where 
subdivision of the property is easily or cheaply possible.  Of particular concern is the 
setbacks that do not meet Land Use Bylaw minimums and the water and sanitary 
sewer servicing which if the subdivision was to proceed may create a large liability 
issue for the Town in the future.  At a minimum each unit should be serviced directly 
from the mains without crossing through or under another unit.  These services if 
crossing another property should be protected by Utility Right-of-ways registered on 
title. 

 There is no sidewalk on 5th Avenue which is the way the building faces. 

12



TOWN OF REDCLIFF 
P.O. Box 40 - 1 – 3rd Street NE 

Redcliff, Alberta  T0J 2P0 
Phone 403-548-3618 

Fax 403-548-6623 
Email  redcliff@redcliff.ca 

www.redcliff.ca 

 

 

 Section 654 of the Municipal Government Act lays out what the Subdivision Approval 
Authority must consider in its decision. 

Director of Public Services – Comments Below: 

 Request that the secondary services do not pass under another building as 
accessing them is virtually impossible 

 Second service set must be accessible from the service around the side of the 
building. 

 Likely needs new services installed assuming two are required on the property 

Director of Finance & Administration – All taxes are paid. 

Director of Community & Protective Services – has nothing to comment on. 

All adjacent landowners circulated did not return comments. 

Administrative Recommendation(s) 

The Town of Redcliff recommends Refusal of Subdivision Application 2018 SUB 03 for the 
following reasons: 

1. Subdividing the parcel as proposed would create servicing issues as the current water 
and sewer servicing would create liability issues for the Town and current servicing of 
gas or electric would not meet the requirements of the servicing providers.  The cost to 
resolve the servicing issues are of such a magnitude that in the opinion of the Town the 
applicant would decide not to proceed. 

2. The created parcels would not meet the minimum requirements of the Land Use Bylaw. 

If MPC decides to approve the subdivision the Town of Redcliff recommends the following 
conditions to be met before endorsement of the plan of subdivision: 

1. Provision of plans acceptable to the Directors of Public Services and Planning and 
Engineering with respect to the servicing of each unit independently with sanitary 
sewage and potable water.  All costs to be borne by the Applicant. 

2. Installing the sanitary sewage and potable water servicing in a manner acceptable to the 
Directors of Public Services and Planning and Engineering. All costs to be borne by the 
Applicant. 

3. Installation of a sidewalk with a minimum flag width of 1.2 metres on 5th Avenue SE 
adjacent to the property. 

13



TOWN OF REDCLIFF 
P.O. Box 40 - 1 – 3rd Street NE 

Redcliff, Alberta  T0J 2P0 
Phone 403-548-3618 

Fax 403-548-6623 
Email  redcliff@redcliff.ca 

www.redcliff.ca 

 

 

4. Resolving the Gas servicing to the satisfaction of the City of Medicine Hat Gas 
Distribution Department. All costs to be borne by the Applicant. 

5. Resolving the Electrical servicing to the satisfaction of the City of Medicine Hat Electrical 
Distribution Department. All costs to be borne by the Applicant. 

6. Registration of any required utility rights of way on titles. All costs to be borne by the 
Applicant. 

7. All taxes are paid. 

14



TOWN OF REDCLIFF 
P.O. Box 40 - 1 – 3rd Street NE 

Redcliff, Alberta  T0J 2P0 
Phone 403-548-3618 

Fax 403-548-6623 
Email  redcliff@redcliff.ca 

www.redcliff.ca 

 

 

Proposed Subdivision Background Report 

File: 2018 SUB 03 

Applicant / Agent of Applicant: Ken Appleton & Paul Vince 

Legal Surveyor: Dean D. Fischer A.L.S., Benchmark Geomatics Inc. 

Current Legal Description: Lots 1 & 2, Block 17, Plan 1117V 

Municipal Address: 437 & 439 2 St. SE, Redcliff AB 

Land Owner: Ken Appleton & Paul Vince 

Type of Subdivision: R1- Single Family Residential District 

Purpose of Subdivision: To subdivide the parcel to create two separate certificates of title 

Subdivision by: (X) Plan   (  ) Instrument 

Current Zoning: R1- Single Family Residential District 

Number of Lots Created: 2 

Reserve Status: (  ) Required  (X) Not Required 

   

15



TOWN OF REDCLIFF 
P.O. Box 40 - 1 – 3rd Street NE 

Redcliff, Alberta  T0J 2P0 
Phone 403-548-3618 

Fax 403-548-6623 
Email  redcliff@redcliff.ca 

www.redcliff.ca 

 

 

Administrative Review 

Background Information: (October 15, 2018) 

This application is intended to subdivide one R1-Single Family Residential District parcel with an 
existing developed duplex into two (2) separate R1-Single Family Residential District parcels.  
The property owners wish to subdivide to create two (2) separate certificates of title. 

Currently, this corner lot is 0.060 ha in size and once subdivided, one parcel will be 0.0277 ha, 
and the other will be 0.0377 ha in size. 

The GIS data shows that there are two separate water services and two separate sanitary 
services which enter the property from 2 Street SE.  Do to the direction of the duplex and the 
proposed subdivision one water service and one sewer service would have to pass under one 
half of the duplex to get to the other half.  There is a potential that the GIS data is not correct 
and that there is only one service, however whether there is one service or two services does 
not change the issue that one half of the proposed subdivision is serviced through and under 
the other half of the building. 

This parcel is located in an established residential neighbourhood with the adjacent land use 
being R1-Single Family Residential District. 

The proposed subdivision is located outside of the affected area identified in the Highway 
Vicinity Management Agreement (which identifies land within 0.8 kilometers from the centre line 
of the Trans Canada Highway). 

The Tri-Area Inter-municipal Development Plan (IDP) identifies the Urban Referral Area. This 
subdivision application is located outside this area. As good practice, this subdivision application 
is being circulated to Cypress County and the City of Medicine Hat to provide information 
regarding urban planning in the Town of Redcliff.   

According to Geodiscover there are no abandoned gas wells in the location of the proposed 
subdivision. Map attached. 

16



5 AVE SE

2 
ST

 S
E

439

426

434

440

425

429

433

437

501

1117V;10;21-23
Zoning; R1

1117V;10;24,
25 Zoning; R1

1117V;16;31,
34 Zoning; R1

1117V;16;35,
36 Zoning; R1

1117V;16;37,
38 Zoning; R1

1117V;16;39,
40 Zoning; R1

1117V;17;1,
2 Zoning; R1

1117V;17;31,
32 Zoning; R1

1117V;17;33,
34 Zoning; R1

1117V;17;35,
36 Zoning; R1

1117V;17;3,
4 Zoning; R1

1117V;17;39,
40 Zoning; R1

1117V;17;5,
6 Zoning; R1

1117V;17;9,
10 Zoning; R1

1117V;17;37,
38 Zoning; R1

3042AV;4;21,
22 Zoning; R1

3042AV;4;17-20
Zoning; R1

3042AV;4;23,
24 Zoning; R1

1117V;16;32,
33 Zoning; R1

1117V;17;7,
8 Zoning; R1

Subject Land 'A'

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



(2018) SUB 03 – Circulation List 
 

 

 

 
Town of Redcliff Administration 

 
Town of Redcliff Municipal Manager 
Town of Redcliff Public Services 
Town of Redcliff Legislative & Land Services 
Town of Redcliff Community & Protective Services 
Town of Redcliff Finance Department 
Town of Redcliff Taxation Department 
Town of Redcliff Development Officer 
Town of Redcliff Municipal Planning Commission Chairman 

 
Affected Agencies 

 
Prairie Rose Regional Division #8 
City of Medicine Hat Electric Department 
City of Medicine Hat Gas Department - Distribution 
City of Medicine Hat Gas Department - Natural Gas & Petroleum Resources 
City of Medicine Hat Planning & Development Services 
Telus Communications 
Shaw Cable Systems G.P. 
Canada Post 
Cypress County Planning Department 

 
Adjacent Property Owners 

 
Lot Block Plan 

39-40 16 1117V 
37-38 16 1117V 

3-4 17 1117V 
37-38 17 1117V 

39 17 1117V 
21 4 3042AV 

17-20 4 3042AV 
21-23 10 1117V 
39-40 16 1117V 

24



Schedule 7 Subdivision Evaluation Checklist 

 MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION   -  SUBDIVISION EVALUATION CHECK LIST 

Subdivision File Number:  (2018) SUB 03  Date: November 7, 2018 

 

Type of Subdivision:  R1- Single Family Residential District 

 

Land Use District  

Existing Land Use District: R1- Single Family Residential District 

 

Correct District for this subdivision? No___  Land Use Bylaw amendment required 

       and Subdivision Application tabled 

     Yes___ Proceed to next section 

  

Municipal Development Plan 

Does the subdivision conform to the Municipal Development Plan? Yes___ No___ 

 Comments: ______________________________________________________ 

 

Property Taxes  

Have taxes been paid on the property to be subdivided?   Exempt ____   Yes___   No___ 

 

Land Use Bylaw  

Does the proposed subdivision meet the requirements of the Land Use Bylaw and the District? 

 N/A___ Yes___ No___ 

 Other District Requirements?     Yes___ No___ 

 If no, explain: ______________________________________________________ 

• The front yard setback of 4.16 m is less than the 6.0 m as required by the LUB; 

• The side yard setback on the North side of 1.08 m is less than the 1.5 m as 
required by the LUB; 

• The side yard setback on the South side of 2.37 m is less than the 3.0 m as 
required by the LUB; 

• Proposed lot size for lot 42 of 226.47 sq. m is less than the 250 sq. m as required 
for a semi-detached dwelling in the R-1 Single Family Residential District; 

25



File: (2018) SUB 03 Date: November 7, 2018 

• Town of Redcliff assessor lists the semi-detached dwelling as 80.08 sq. m (862 
sq. ft.) per side. The site coverage would be 35% and would comply with the LUB; 

• The LUB requires 2 parking stalls per residence. The parking stalls shall not be 
permitted in the front yard if the building is less than 6.0 m; 

• A parking stall is defined in the LUB as 2.7 m by 7.2 m; 

• There appears to be adequate room for 2 parking stalls in the front yard. A drive 
by inspection, and aerial views show that there is currently no parking in the front 
yard of the building; 

• The LUB requires a minimum of 6.0 sq. m of amenity space for all multi-family 
developments. This amenity space shall be exclusive of front and side yard 
setbacks; 

• Should the addressing change so that the front of the building is considered on 5 
avenue, the buildings would not comply with the minimum rear yard setback of 6.0 
m. 

Are there existing buildings on the property?    Yes___ No___ 

Has a real property report been submitted?   N/A___ Yes___ No___ 

 

  

26



File: (2018) SUB 03 Date: November 7, 2018 

Property File  

Review and/or update Property File?     Yes___ No___ 

 Comments: ______________________________________________________  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Adjacency Matters 

Is the subdivision located on the edge of Town?    Yes___ No___ 

Has the adjacent municipality responded?  N/A___ Yes___ No___ 

 Comments: See Subdivision Authority Report Adminstrative Summary for comments  

 

Have any notified adjacent land owners responded?   Yes___ No___ 

Comments: No comments were received. 

 

Are there any gas or oil wells within 100 m of the subdivision? Yes___ No___ 

Other:  __________________________________________________________________ 

Comments: _________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Are there any rights of way crossing the property?   Yes___ No___ 

Is the subdivision located along the TransCanada Highway? Yes___ No___ 

Is the subdivision within 300 metres of a non-operating landfill? Yes___ No___ 

(Section 13(3)(b) of the Subdivision and Development Regulation) 

If yes, has notification been provided to Alberta Environment? Yes___ No___ 

(Note:  Subdivision shall not be approved without consent of Alberta Environment) 

 

What type of development is adjacent to this subdivision? 

R1- Single Family Residential District 

 

Land considerations that affect or restrict this subdivision 

Is the topography of the site suitable for subdivision?   Yes___ No___  

Are the soil characteristics suitable?      Yes___ No___ 

Is there adequate drainage for this site?     Yes___ No___  

Can storm water be collected and disposed?    Yes__ No___ 

27



File: (2018) SUB 03 Date: November 7, 2018 

Is the land suitable for the proposed subdivision?    Yes___ No___ 

Comments: ____________________________________________________________ 

 

Environmental Assessment 

Are there problems related to subsidence, flooding or erosion?  Yes___ No___ 

Is an Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) required?   Yes___ No___ 

 

Servicing Matters 

Is there direct access to a developed public street?    Yes___ No___ 

Are municipal water and sewer services available?    Yes___ No___ 

Are gas, electrical, telephone, cable services available?   Yes___ No___ 

Have the utility companies raised any concerns?    Yes___ No___ 

 

Municipal Reserve 

Is the subdivision subject to the dedication of reserve?   Yes___ No___ 

If yes, what is the land area required (10%):       ______ha ______ac 

 Should land be dedicated as part of the subdivision?  Yes___ No___ 

 Should reserve be deferred at this time by caveat?   Yes___ No___ 

 Should money in place of reserve be paid?   Yes___ No___ 

 If yes, what is the value of the land?     #__________/ha
 $___________/ha 

 

Off-Site Levies       Yes___ N/A___ 

Service Agreement 

Is an agreement with the Town required to deal with the construction or installation of: 

  Streets and lanes     Yes___ No___ 

  Municipal utilities     Yes___ No___ 

  Other utility services     Yes___ No___ 

  Sidewalks      Yes___ No___ 

  Off-street parking or loading    Yes___ No___ 

  Curb, gutter, streetlights   Yes___ No___

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISION 
 

Planning & Engineering Report 
 

 
November 6, 2018 
 
Development Permit Application:   18-DP-065 

Applicant:            PlanWorks Architecture Inc. 
       C/o Tom Ellis 
 
Owner:       Larry Leipert 

Property Address:     318 Broadway Avenue E 

Legal Address:     Lot 16, Block 75, Plan 755AD 

Land Use: C-2 Downtown Commercial District  

Development Officer:     Brian Stehr 

 
1. BACKGROUND:           
 
Over the last two (2) months, Planning & Engineering has been in contact with New Leaf 
Cannabis regarding opening a Retail Cannabis store and the Town’s requirements for opening 
such a store in the Town of Redcliff. 
 
After receiving approval for the location and survey from the Development Officer, New Leaf 
Cannabis held an Open House on September 25, 2018 in accordance with Section 43 of the 
Town’s Land Use Bylaw. 
 
On October 12, 2018 PlanWorks Architecture Inc., on behalf of New Leaf Cannabis, submitted a 
Development Permit Application for a Cannabis Retail Store at 318 Broadway Avenue E.  
 
On October 18, 2018 a letter was sent to PlanWorks Architecture Inc. asking for further 
information required to complete the application. October 25, 2018 the Town received an email 
from the Applicant indicating those items that PlanWorks Architecture Inc. would and would not 
be supplying regarding the Development Permit Application. On October 30, the Town received 
a partial Real Property Report.  
 
November 2, 2018 the Town received payment for Development Permit Application 18-DP-065. 
The applicant deems that the application is complete. 
 
2.   PLANNING & ENGINEERING COMMENTS        
 
The Land Use Bylaw defines a Cannabis Retail Store as: 

‐ Means development for the retail sale of recreational Cannabis and Cannabis 
Accessories, as authorized by the Alberta Gaming, Liquor, and Cannabis Act. This 
use does not include Cannabis Production and Distribution Facility, Medical 
Marijuana Dispensary, or Cannabis Lounge. 
 

68



Section 43 Cannabis Retail Store of the Town’s Land Use Bylaw states: 

(1) Legal Basis 

(a) Cannabis Retail Stores are regulated by the provincial government and 
must meet all requirements set out in the Gaming, Liquor and Cannabis 
Act and all subsequent regulations.  

(b) Cannabis Retail Store is a discretionary use, Municipal Planning 
Commission.  

(c) All Cannabis Retail Stores require a Development Permit.  

(2) Development Standards 

(a) A Cannabis Retail Store shall only be located in an area covered by the 
Cannabis Retail Store Overlay.  

(b) The Cannabis Retail Store Overlay was created with the following 
guidelines to include parcels that are:  

(i) located in I1 (Light Industrial), C3 (General Commercial), C2 
(Downtown Commercial), and C-HWY (Highway Commercial) 
Districts, 

(ii) located outside of the 100 metre setback from any parcel of land 
on which a Cannabis Retail Store is located to a boundary of the 
parcel of land of a:  

i. Provincial health care facility; 

ii. School; 

iii. School reserve or municipal and school reserve as 
designated in the Municipal Government Act; 

iv. Municipal recreation facility (including the youth centre, 
swimming pool, rec-tangle, and library);  

v. Payday loan centre or pawn shop; 

vi. Daycare or childcare facility; or 

vii. Public park used for recreational purposes; and  

(iii) Located in places that fit the context of the surrounding area. 
Several parcels that meet the requirements in (i) and (ii) above 
were not included in the overlay because they are lone 
commercial parcels in the middle of residential neighbourhoods.  

(c) A Cannabis Retail Store shall meet all applicable requirements of the 
respective District in which it is located. 

69



(d) A Cannabis Retail Store must be a stand-alone store and shall not 
operate accessory to, or in conjunction with any other use. 

(e) Development Permits for Cannabis Retail Stores are conditional subject 
to the Development Officer receiving a copy of the retail license issued by 
the Alberta Gaming, Liquor, and Cannabis Commission from the 
Applicant.  

(f) Parking for a Cannabis Retail Store shall be provided in accordance with 
the parking requirements for a Retail Store and the parking requirements 
for the District in which it is located. 

(g) Development Permit Applications for Cannabis Retail Stores require the 
Applicant to engage the public on the proposed development by: 

(i) Notifying adjacent property owners in writing; 

(ii) Hosting at least one public open house, on a weekday evening, 
for at least 2 hours, in a neutral public location in Redcliff;  

(iii) Advertising the open house in the local paper and on all Town 
social media outlets for at least 2 weeks prior to the open house; 

(iv) Offering a survey for open house attendees to provide feedback; 
and 

(v) Advertising the public is welcome to attend the MPC meeting in 
person where the decision on the Development Permit will be 
made, or make a written submission to the Development Officer 
before a specified date. 

(h) The Applicant is required to receive approval of the open house location, 
advertising, and survey from the Development Officer prior to the 
advertising commencing. 

(3) Development Permit Application Requirements 

(a) Location plan showing the proposed Cannabis Retail Store and the 
distances to any of the following located within 500 metres of the store: 

(i) Provincial health care facility; 

(ii) School; 

(iii) School reserve or municipal and school reserve as designated in 
the Municipal Government Act; 

(iv) Municipal recreation facility (including the youth centre, swimming 
pool, rec-tangle, and library);  

(v) Payday loan centre or pawn shop; 

(vi) Daycare or childcare facility; or 

(vii) Public park used for recreational purposes. 

70



(b) Detailed site plan containing all of the information required for the District, 
and the following additional information: 

(i) Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) 
measures;  

(ii) Storage areas for Cannabis; 

(iii) Shipping and receiving areas; 

(iv) Adjacent uses;  

(v) Location and design of signage; and  

(vi) Security measures 

(c) Waste management/disposal plan. 

(d) Elevation plans showing access and signage. 

(e) Completion of public engagement by providing to the Development 
Officer: 

(i) A list of the addresses of adjacent property owners;  

(ii) Copies of the notification letters sent to adjacent property owners; 
and 

(iii) A summary of open house survey results.  

(4) Criteria For Consideration 

(a) The Municipal Planning Commission must consider the following when 
reviewing an application for a Cannabis Retail Store:  

(i) The extent to which the applicant demonstrates conformity with 
provincial and municipal regulations to minimize potential adverse 
effects on the community (i.e. site safety and security measures); 

(ii) Whether any legitimate public concerns expressed during public 
consultation were addressed by the applicant; and  

(iii) The recommendations and comments from Planning and 
Engineering.  

(5) Administration and Enforcement  

(a) The use and Development Permit for a Cannabis Retail Store shall: 

(i) Expire at the end of 5 years; and 

(ii) Be reviewed by the Town four years after the issuance of the use 
and the Development Permit.   

(b) Where the Town finds that the conditions of the Development Permit have 
been met and the use is not causing undesirable impacts to the Town, the 
Town will automatically issue a new Development Permit 6 months in 
advance of the expiring permit for 5 years that expires on the anniversary 
date of the original permit. 

71



(c) Where the Town finds that the conditions of the Development Permit have 
not been met or that the use is causing undesirable impacts to the Town, 
the Town will issue a notice to the Applicant 6 months in advance of the 
expiring permit, that the Town will not be automatically renewing the use 
and Development permit. The notice to the applicant must include: 

(i) The reasons the permit is not being renewed, 

(ii) The date of the permit expiring, and 

(iii) That if the Applicant wishes to continue the use the Applicant must 
make a new Development Permit application. 

(d) If The Town fails to issue a Development Permit under clause (9)(b) or if 
the Town fails to issue a notification under clause (9)(c), the Town will 
automatically issue a new Development Permit for 5 years from when the 
Development Permit should have been issued that expires on the 
anniversary date of the original permit. 

(e) Development Permits will be cancelled if and when the retail license is no 
longer valid with the Alberta Gaming, Liquor, and Cannabis Commission. 

(6) Standard Conditions of Approval 

(a) Development Permits are conditional subject to the Development Officer 
receiving a copy of the retail license issued by the Alberta Gaming, 
Liquor, and Cannabis Commission from the applicant. 

(b) The use and Development Permit for a Cannabis Retail Store shall expire 
and require reapplication after 5 years to the day of approval. 

Development Officer Comments: 

When reviewing the application, the Development Officer noted the following: 

a) Shipping & Receiving areas were not identified on Application; 
b) The size and location of sign(s) were not properly identified in Application. It should be 

noted that the Applicant has indicated that they will submit a separate Development 
Permit Application for signage; 

c) A dimensioned layout of parking spaces and shipping & receiving areas was not 
submitted. 

 
Section 70 Parking and Loading Requirements of the Town’s states: 
 

(1) Calculations 
a. The Development Authority shall require all proponents of development to 

provide off-street parking and loading facilities in accordance with the location 
and scale of development proposed in accordance with the following table 
and unless otherwise stated, shall: 

i. Be calculated on the basis of gross floor area less any interior halls, 
mechanical rooms, stairways and elevators providing for the through 
movement of pedestrians; 

ii. Be calculated on the next higher number where the calculation of the 
required number of parking stalls or loading spaces results in a 

72



fraction number or parking spaces (e.g. if 2.1 parking stalls are 
calculated, 3 parking stalls are required) and; 

iii. Be calculated based upon fire occupancy ratings where the term 
“seats” is used. 
 

d. When a building is enlarged, altered, or a change in the use occurs, provision 
shall be made for the additional parking spaces required under the parking 
provisions of the Bylaw. Any parking spaces that may have been removed 
due to the enlargement or alteration shall be replaced. 

e. Where employee parking is required, parking shall be factored on the basis of 
maximum persons employed at any one time. 
 

 
The parking for a Retail Cannabis Store shall be calculated at the same rate as a Retail Store 
which requires 1 parking stall/ 30 sq. metres. This would require a minimum of 7 parking stalls. 
PlanWorks Architecture Inc. has indicated that there will be as many as five (5) employees 
during normal hours of operation. Planning & Engineering recommends a minimum of twelve 
(12) parking stalls for the proposed Cannabis Retail Store. The submitted Site Plan indicates no 
on-site parking. 
 
The Town’s LUB requires that a minimum of 10% of the required parking stalls be handicap 
accessible. The Parking Plan does not show any handicap parking stalls. 
 
Historically, when applying the parking regulations to Development Permits in the C-2 
Downtown Commercial District the Development Authority has allowed the Applicant to count 
the angled parking stalls that are directly in front of the building as part of the on-site parking. 
Aerial pictures, and a site inspection indicate that there are three (3) parking stalls that could be 
counted towards the required on-site parking. 
 
A visual inspection of the property and adjoining properties indicate that the area is currently 
made up of a mixture of retail businesses, and residential properties. The properties directly to 
the north, east, and west of the site are currently zoned C-2 Downtown Commercial District. The 
properties directly to the south of the site are single family homes.  
 

3. RECOMMENDATION:          

MPC does not have the discretionary authority to adjust parking requirements by more than 
10%.  MPC in approving this development application is making a change of use from Retail 
Store to Cannabis Retail Store, meaning meeting the parking requirements must be considered.  
However Planning and Engineering notes that the Cannabis Retail Store Use is actually a 
special subcategory of the Retail Store Use with the exact same parking requirements (there 
are other special requirements that differentiate a Cannabis Retail Store from a Retail Store).  If 
this was any store other than a Cannabis Retail Store no change of use requirements would be 
considered to approve the development and the current parking would be deemed to have been 
previously approved.  The questions that MPC needs to ask before rendering a decision are: 
 

 Is the application completed sufficiently for MPC’s to approve the development?  
Conditions can be added to the decision to require additional information that MPC does 
not consider critical to rendering their decision. 

73



 As far as the requirements for parking are concerned, should MPC adopt the position 
that the application does not constitute a change of use?  A decision made either way 
would be appealable. 

 Is there currently sufficient parking for this store? 
 

Planning and Engineering Provides the following suggested motions: 

 

1. MPC member       moved that Development Permit 
Application 18-DP-065 for a Retail Cannabis Store be denied for the following reasons: 
 

1. The submitted application is incomplete. Specifically the Applicant has failed to 
provide: 

i. A detailed Site Plan which indicates 

1. Property lines shown and labelled; 

2. Setbacks to all property lines, shown and labelled; 

3. How the applicant is meeting parking requirements; 

4. Where the Shipping and Receiving areas are. 

 

2. MPC member       moved that Development Permit 
Application 18-DP-065 for a Retail Cannabis Store be Approved with the following 
conditions: 

1. All signage to the exterior shall require a separate Development Permit; 

2. A Site Plan which indicates the Shipping & Receiving areas; 

3. Any exterior lighting above what is currently in place shall comply with Section 
65 Lighting of the Town’s Land Use Bylaw; 

4. The Applicant shall apply and receive a Building Permit from the Town for all 
interior renovations; 

5. Development Officer to receive a copy of the retail license issued by the 
Alberta Gaming, Liquor, and Cannabis Commission; 

6. The Development Permit is valid for five (5) years; 

7. The Town will issue a permit in year four (4) if in the opinion of the 
Development Authority that the Retail Cannabis Store is not causing 
undesirable impacts on the Town; 

8. Where the Town finds that the conditions of the Development Permit have not 
been met or that the use is causing undesirable impacts to the Town, the Town 
will issue a notice to the Applicant six (6) months in advance of the expiring 
permit, that the Town will not be automatically renewing the use and 
Development Permit. The notice to the applicant must include: 

i. The reasons the permit is not being renewed,  

ii. The date of the permit expiring, and 

74



iii. That if the Applicant wishes to continue the use the Applicant must make 
a new Development Permit application. 

9. If the Town fails to issue a Development Permit or if the Town fails to issue a 
Notice, the Town will automatically issue a new Development Permit for five (5) 
years from when the Development Permit should have been issued. 

10. Development Permits, including use, will be cancelled if and when the retail 
license is no longer valid with the Alberta Gaming, Liquor, and Cannabis 
Commission. 

 

 

 

75


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



